
 
 

PLANNING, REGULATORY AND 
LICENSING 

 
5.00 PM WEDNESDAY, 18TH SEPTEMBER, 2019 

 

COUNCIL CHAMBER 
 

 
Please note that this meeting will be recorded for subsequent broadcast via the Authority’s 

Internet Site.  
  

The images and sound recording may also be used for training purposes within the Authority. 
 

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and using 
the Public Seating Area, Members  

of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and 
sound recordings as outlined above.   

 

 
This Agenda has been prepared by the  

Democratic Services Department. Any member of the public requiring information should 
contact the department on (01685 725284) or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 

 
Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found 

on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

Planning Applications  -  Recommendations under the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and the Planning and Compensation Act 
1991 

3. P/180/377 -  3 Union Street, Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 
0EB  

 

 To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

5 - 14 

4. P/19/0118 - Land opposite 1-4 Caradoc Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil  

 

 To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

15 - 24 

Information Reports 

5. P/18/0343 Appeal Received   

 To receive report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

25 - 26 

6. Delegated Report   

 To receive report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

27 - 34 

7. Any Other Business Deemed Urgent by the Chair   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 

COMPOSITION: Councillors  C Tovey (Chair)  
                    M Colbran (Vice-Chair) 

  
 Councillors:  J Amos, H Barrett, D Chaplin, 

E Galsworthy, K Gibbs, C T Jones, G Lewis, J Thomas 
and S Thomas 
 

 together with appropriate officers 
  

 
If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

 
 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

DATE WRITTEN 3rd September 2019 

REPORT AUTHOR Judith Jones 

CASE OFFICER Marlene Ferreira 

COMMITTEE Planning and Regulatory 

COMMITTEE DATE 18th September 2019 

 
 
Application No. Date Determining Authority 
P/18/0377 7th May 2019 MTCBC 
   
Proposed Development Location Name & Address of 

Applicant/Agent 
   
Change of use from a dwelling 
into a self contained flat at lower 
ground floor and two, one 
bedroom holiday lets, (one at 
ground floor and one at first floor) 
to include the installation of two 
air conditioning units and new 
windows and doors to the rear of 
the property (Retrospective) 

3 Union Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0EB 

Mr Crimmings  
c/o George + Co 
Hwyl Hub 
1st Floor Woodfired 
Studios 
62 High Street 
Merthyr Tydfil    

 
 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



PURPOSE OF REPORT 
To further consider planning application P/18/0377 
 
At the 31st July 2019 Planning Committee Members resolved not to accept the officer 
recommendation to conditionally approve the planning application and further 
resolved that they were minded to refuse the application for the following two 
reasons:  
 
1) There is insufficient parking provision to cope with the increased demand 

generated by users of the proposed holiday flats in what is a residential dead 
end street. This will rise to an unacceptable level of increased congestion in a 
street which is also used as a home/school travel route for secondary school 
pupils.    

  
2)  The area is sited in the Thomastown Conservation Area. The proposed use of 

the building for holiday flats is not characteristic of the historic purposes of the 
terraced properties in this street and that it would have a significant impact on 
the character of the area.  

 
Committee are reminded that if refused, the applicants have a right of appeal and 
that any such appeal would have to be defended by those members nominated by 
Committee. All reasons for refusal will need to be fully evidenced and it should be 
noted that as highlighted in the officer report the impacts of the development in terms 
of car parking, highway safety and character of the conservation area are deemed to 
be acceptable.  
 
The form of appeal will be determined by the Planning Inspectorate and can take the 
form of written representations, hearing or inquiry. An award of costs can be made 
by the Planning Inspectorate if they consider that unreasonable behaviour has led 
the other party to incur unnecessary or wasted expense.  
 
On the basis of the advice set out above, the recommendation to approve subject to 
conditions remains.  
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
To further consider planning application P/18/0377 following a fact finding site 
visit on 15th July 2019 
 
At the Planning, Regulatory and Licensing Committee meeting held on the 3rd July 
2019 it was resolved to defer the determination of the application to allow members 
to undertake a fact finding site visit. This took place on the 15th July 2019. 
 
The main planning related issues raised during the fact finding site visit centred on 
the impact of the proposal on the amenities of nearby occupiers and the lack of 
parking provision within the street. All of these issues have been fully considered in 
the original committee report, thus the conclusions reached were simply re-iterated 
at the site visit. It was also re-iterated at the site meeting that some of the objections 
raised to the application are not material planning considerations and cannot be 
controlled by planning legislation.  
 

Page 6



Therefore, the points raised at the fact finding site visit did not highlight any new 
issues that would alter the original recommendation to Committee.  
 
COMMITTEE’S DECISION IS REQUIRED. 
 
A copy of the original report to Committee is reproduced below for committee’s 
convenience.  
 
Councillor John Thomas and Councillor Andrew Barry have requested that this 
application be determined by the Planning, Regulatory and Licensing Committee to 
consider noise and overcrowding concerns and other issues raised by neighbours.   
 
APPLICATION SITE 
 
The application site relates to a terraced two-storey property (with basement level) 
located near the town centre. The dwelling has been extended to the rear by means 
of a two storey addition. It lies in a no-through road and backs onto a rear lane, 
which can be accessed from its rear garden. The property is served by on-street 
parking.   
 
The dwelling lies in a residential street of terraced properties, some of which have 
also been extended to the rear. Like the application site, these properties also have 
access to the rear lane and are only served by on-street parking. 
 
The application site lies within the settlement boundary – Primary Growth Area and 
Thomastown Conservation Area and just outside the town centre boundary, as 
designated within the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development (LDP) 2006-2021.    
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
This application seeks planning permission to convert the existing three bedroom 
dwelling into one self-contained flat and two holiday lets. It also includes external 
alterations to the rear of the property, as well as the installation of two air 
conditioning units.  
 
The self-contained flat is proposed at basement level and would be served by a 
bedroom, a kitchen/living space and a shower room. The flat would be independently 
accessed via the rear lane, along the rear garden and through a rear entrance door 
at basement level. The holiday let at ground floor would have a living space/bedroom 
area and shower room. The holiday let at first floor would also have a living 
space/bedroom area and a shower room. Both holiday lets would be accessed via 
the existing front entrance from Union Street.   
 
External alterations are proposed to the rear of the property and would involve the 
addition of a new UPVC window and door (to replace an existing window) on the rear 
elevation at basement level and a new window (to replace an existing door) on the 
northern side elevation of the rear extension, at basement level. The window and 
door on the rear elevation have already been installed.   
 

Page 7



Two air conditioning units, each measuring 0.8 metres wide, 0.9 metres high and 0.3 
metres deep, are proposed above the roof of the rear extension. These would 
provide heating/cooling facilities to serve the units. One of the units has already been 
installed.  
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The Council’s records do not indicate any other planning history for this site.  
 
CONSULTATION  
 
Engineering and Traffic Group Leader     No objection.  
 
Planning Division Policy Group Leader    No objection.  
 
Planning Division Conservation Officer  Concerns raised in 

respect of the 
intensified use of the 
property.   
  

 
Environmental Health Manager     No objection. 
 
Welsh Water        No objection.  
 
PUBLICITY 
 
In accordance with the Town & Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (Wales) Order 2012, letters were sent to neighbouring properties. As a 
result of this publicity exercise, nine letters of objection have been received. The 
concerns raised in the letters have been summarised below: 
 

 The work has already begun without the benefit of planning permission; 

 The layout, where a bedroom is next to the living room of a neighbouring 
dwelling, is not convenient and would generate a lot of noise and disturbance, 
impacting on neighbouring properties, particularly those with medical 
conditions and who have trouble sleeping;  

 The construction of a kitchen at first floor next to the neighbouring properties 
would be a fire hazard since there is no fire escape in place; 

 The property lies in a conservation area and it is assumed that the siting of a 
large extractor fan unit at the rear would be an eyesore, yet this has already 
been done. The unit is on at all times and is very disruptive to nearby 
occupiers, especially during the night time. The council have a duty to 
preserve and enhance the character of the conservation area, as set out in 
the Thomastown Conservation Area Appraisal and this proposal should 
therefore not be acceptable. If approved, it would further deteriorate the 
appearance of the area, adding it to other unacceptable developments such 
as the listed synagogue building which has been left unmaintained;  

 The boundary between neighbouring properties has been knocked down and 
replaced with an 8ft high wall;  

Page 8



 Three wheelie bins, three black bins and three food bins, would extend along 
the application property and beyond and be an eyesore at the front of the 
property. They would also result in a hazard to pedestrians using the 
pavement, whereby parts of the pavement have already been lost to vehicular 
parking;  

 There is not enough parking in the street to serve existing residents and the 
proposal would result in an additional 3 to 6 vehicles having to park in a 
narrow and already overcrowded street, where vehicles are required to park 
partially on the pavement, or even, elsewhere (i.e. Tesco car park) to allow 
emergency vehicles and refuse vehicles to gain access. There is insufficient 
on-street parking spaces. This development would result in additional on-
street parking, thus resulting in more obstructions for emergency vehicles, 
should these need to access the street; 

 The type of tenants living at the property would cause issues for neighbouring 
properties and have done so in the past, resulting in additional noise and 
disturbances;  

 The development would de-value neighbouring properties; 

 The noise from the fan units at the rear will be disruptive to a disabled person;  

 Not all neighbouring properties within the street have received a letter. This 
process is unfair and all neighbours should be consulted since it will affect 
everyone within the street;   

 For over 30 years there hasn’t been any issues on this street, but in the last 4 
years, it has become a dumping ground, with rubbish, including nappies, etc 
being discarded on the street. This is also the case for the lane which runs 
along the rear of these properties. The lane also tends to be used by 
individuals for anti-social behaviour. The addition of three separate units in the 
street will only make these problems worse; 

 The development would be detrimental to the health of nearby occupiers.       
 
POLICY CONTEXT 
 
National Planning Policies  
 
Planning Policy Wales (edition 10, December 2018)  
 
Paragraph 2.2 refers to place making and states that ‘…the planning system should 
create sustainable places which are attractive, sociable, accessible, active, secure, 
welcoming, healthy and friendly. Development proposals should create the 
conditions to bring people together, making them want to live, work and play in areas 
with a sense of place and well-being, creating prosperity for all…’ 
 
Paragraph 3.12 discusses movement and states that ‘…Good design is about 
avoiding the creation of car-based developments. It contributes to minimising the 
need to travel and reliance on the car, whilst maximising opportunities for people to 
make sustainable and healthy travel choices for their daily journeys. Achieving these 
objectives requires the selection of sites which can be made easily accessible by 
sustainable modes as well as incorporating appropriate, safe and sustainable links 
(including active travel networks) within and between developments using legal 
agreements where appropriate…’ 
 

Page 9



Paragraphs 6.1.5, 6.1.7 and 6.1.8 refers to the historic environment and states that 
‘…the planning system must take into account the Welsh Government’s objectives to 
protect, conserve, promote and enhance the historic environment as a resource for 
the general well-being of present and future generations. The historic environment 
can only be maintained as a resource for future generations if the individual historic 
assets are protected and conserved…It is important that the planning system looks 
to protect, conserve and enhance the significance of historic assets.  
 
Local Planning Policies  
 
The following policies within the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan (LDP) 2006 
– 2021 are relevant to the determination of this application: 
 

Policy BW1- Development strategy – Primary Growth Area 
Policy BW4- Settlement boundaries / locational constraints 
Policy BW6 – Townscape and Built Heritage 
Policy BW7- Sustainable design and place making 
Policy BW8- Development and the water environment 
Policy BW12- Development proposals and transport 
Policy BW17- Securing community infrastructure benefits 
Policy AS22- Affordable housing contributions 
Policy TB11- Access, parking and accessibility of local facilities 

 
Other Guidance: 
 
Thomastown Town Conservation Area Appraisal (July 2014) 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The issues to consider under the assessment of this application relate to whether the 
proposal would be acceptable in principle in this location, as well as in respect of its 
impact on the character and appearance of the existing premises and the 
conservation area, residential amenity, parking provision and highway safety.  
 
Principle of Development  
 
The existing property lies within the settlement boundary and the proposed 
conversion of a dwelling into a flat and two holiday units would therefore be in 
accordance with LDP Policies BW1 and BW4, since new development in this 
location is acceptable in principle, provided it complies with other relevant policies. 
 
Character and Appearance  
 
The external alterations to the premises are proposed to the rear of the property. The 
windows and door are proposed at lower basement level and as such, would not 
only be screened from neighbouring properties but also from the rear streetscene, by 
virtue of the high wall enclosing the rear garden. These alterations are therefore 
considered low key changes which would not detract from the character or 
appearance of the dwelling or the conservation area and would be in accordance 
with LDP Policies BW6 and BW7.  

Page 10



 
The impact of the proposed air conditioning units has also been assessed and this 
part of the proposal is also considered acceptable. These units are not highly visible 
from the rear lane given the size of the existing rear boundary treatment and the fact 
that each unit would be less than 1 metre in height, only 0.3 metres deep and would 
sit tight against the rear wall of the property. They would however, be visible from 
neighbouring properties, but again, the size of the existing boundary enclosures 
would limit any detrimental visual impact.  As such, in this instance, the proposed air 
conditioning units would be an acceptable form of development which would not 
have a significant harmful impact on the character or appearance of the property or 
the conservation area and would therefore comply with LDP Policies BW6 and BW7.     
 
It is noted that the Council’s Conservation Officer has raised concerns in respect of 
this proposal. Primarily, she is concerned about the use of the building which is not 
characteristic of the historic purpose of the terraced properties in this street, i.e. a 
terraced dwelling. Whilst this is appreciated, the adaptation of the building for the 
proposed uses would not have a significant impact on the character of the area and 
would not warrant the refusal of the application due to its failure to preserve or 
enhance the conservation area.      
 
Residential Amenity 
 
The conversion of a residential property to one flat would not have any significantly 
greater impact on neighbouring residents, in terms of overlooking, than that which 
currently exists. Whilst new windows, including a side facing window, are proposed 
to serve the flat, these would be installed at basement level and would therefore not 
result in any overlooking into neighbouring properties. The proposed holiday lets, 
given the nature of their use, would not result in a development which would cause 
significant noise and disturbance. Whilst three separate units are now proposed, the 
number of bedrooms serving the premises would still be three. As such, the potential 
for noise and disturbance would be very similar to a three bedroom residential 
property, which could be occupied, at any time, by a similar number of people. Whilst 
the objections from nearby residents have been considered in respect of noise and 
disturbance, as well as anti-social behaviour, it should be noted that the 
responsibility for dealing with anti-social behaviour is shared between a number of 
agencies, particularly the Police, local authorities (e.g. Public Health and Protection) 
and landlords. It should also be noted that the Environmental Health Manager has 
not raised any objections in respect of the proposed use of the premises.  Thus, in 
this instance, it is considered the flat and two holiday lets would not have a 
significant adverse impact on the amenities of nearby occupiers and would therefore 
comply with LDP Policy BW7.      
 
The impact of the air conditioning units has also been considered and the concerns 
raised by nearby occupiers have been noted. However, whilst some noise would be 
emitted from these units, it would not have an adverse impact on the amenities of 
nearby occupiers. This has been confirmed by the Environmental Health Officer 
following a visit to the premises. The proposed development would therefore comply 
with LDP Policy BW7.     
 
 

Page 11



Parking and Highway Safety 
 
With regard to the objections of local residents concerning on-street parking, it 
should be noted that the property has 3 bedrooms and this would not change as a 
result of the proposal. Therefore, when compared to the permitted use, the proposal 
would not significantly increase the demand for on-street parking to a level that 
would cause an adverse impact on the free flow of traffic or highway/ pedestrian 
safety. In addition, the site lies in a sustainable location, being located within walking 
distance of shops and services. It is also located in close proximity to the bus station 
and railway station. As such, the absence of on-site car parking to serve the 
proposed units has not raised any significant concerns and the Engineering and 
Traffic Group Leader has therefore not objected to the application. The proposal 
would therefore be in accordance with LDP Policies BW12 and TB11. 
 
Responses to Representations  
 
Some of the concerns raised by local residents have been considered above. Other 
concerns raised are addressed below: 
 

 It is not illegal to carry out works without planning permission. Current 
legislation enables applicants to submit retrospective applications to seek 
planning permission for unauthorised development;   

 The layout of the units and their acceptability in respect of fire escapes would 
be a consideration under the Building Regulations;   

 The agent has confirmed that the dividing boundary fence has been replaced 
by a wall which does not exceed 2 metres in height and as such does not 
require planning permission;   

 Any visual impact resulting from the siting of bins at the front of the property 
would not be dissimilar to that occurring on current refuse collection days;  

 The illegal parking of cars in the street (i.e. on the pavement) is a Police 
matter;    

 The type of people living in the flat or visiting the holiday lets would not be a 
planning consideration;  

 The loss of value of neighbouring properties is not a material planning 
consideration; 

 In consulting the adjoining occupiers, the local planning authority has 
complied with the relevant legislation;  

 Issues regarding the discarding of waste/fly tipping in the street is not a 
planning matter.  

 
Conclusion  
 
This application has been carefully considered in respect of each of the issues that 
the application raises and it is noted that the majority of objections received relate to 
the potential impact this proposal would have on parking provision and highway 
safety as well as the potential noise and disturbance the proposed uses would have 
on nearby occupiers. However, for the reasons stated above, it is considered that the 
proposal, in this instance, complies with the relevant LDP policies and as such is 
considered acceptable.  
 

Page 12



The duty to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of 
Wales, in accordance with the sustainable development principle, under section 3 of 
the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (“the WBFG Act”) has been 
taken into consideration when determining this application. In this respect, it is noted 
that the Council’s Local Development Plan puts sustainability at its core.  Delivering 
a mix of quality housing through the re-use of vacant buildings or brownfield land, 
within existing settlements, is key.  The ways of working set out at section 5 of the 
WBFG Act have been considered and thus the proposal is in accordance with the 
sustainable development principle through its contribution towards one or more of 
the Welsh Ministers well-being objectives set out as required by section 8 of the 
WBFG Act. 
 
 
Accordingly the following recommendation is made: 
 
RECOMMENDATION: BE APPROVED subject to the following CONDITIONS: 
 
 
 1. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plans and documents: 
  
 - 588-02D, received 7th May 2019;   
  
 Reason -To ensure compliance with the approved plans and clearly define 

the scope of the permission. 
 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 
            

DATE WRITTEN 3rd September 2019 

REPORT AUTHOR Judith Jones 

CASE OFFICER Marlene Ferreira 

COMMITTEE Planning and Regulatory 

COMMITTEE DATE 18th September 2019 

 
 
Application No. Date Determining Authority 
P/19/0118 18th July 2019 MTCBC 
   
Proposed Development Location Name & Address of 

Applicant/Agent 
   
Proposed construction of two 
detached dwellings 

Land Opposite 1-4 
Caradoc Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 
 

Mr & Mrs R & H Mathias  
c/o Bernard Eacock Ltd 
1 Fine Street 
Peterchurch 
Herefordshire 
HR2 0SN    

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



Councillor Declan Sammon has requested that this application be reported to the Planning, 
Regulatory and Licensing Committee to consider the revised layout of the development 
(following the approval of planning application P/18/0292) and its impact on local residents.  
 
APPLICATION SITE 
 
The application site relates to an area of land which measures approximately 0.04 of a 
hectare. It is located at the western end of Caradoc Street. The site, which was formerly 
overgrown, is currently under construction but not in accordance with a recently permitted 
development (P/18/0292) to construct two dwellings.  This application seeks to rectify this 
breach of planning control. 
 
The site lies in a predominantly residential area and is bound to the northeast by the 
highway (Caradoc Street), to the southwest by a rear lane, to the west by residential 
properties (Well Street) and to the southeast by garages. The profile of the site generally 
slopes down from the northeast to the southwest. The surrounding area mainly consists of 
a mixture of terraced and semi-detached properties which vary somewhat in terms of their 
size and design.  
 
The site lies within the settlement boundary – Primary Growth Area, as designated within 
the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan (LDP) 2006-2021.  
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
This application seeks planning permission to construct two detached dwellings, with 
associated amenity areas to the rear and on-site parking facilities to the front (accessed via 
Caradoc Street).  
 
The two-storey dwellings would have a front gable projection and measure 5.8 metres wide, 
9 metres deep with a 7 metre ridge height. They would be served by a lounge, 
kitchen/dining area, utility room and WC at ground floor and three bedrooms (one with an 
en-suite) and a bathroom at first floor. The external walls would be finished in render and 
the roof covered with Spanish slates. Two parking spaces, laid in permeable paving, would 
be provided to the front of each dwelling. An elevated patio area and lower garden area 
would be provided to the rear of each dwelling. These amenity areas would be enclosed by 
fencing on top of a retaining wall. This boundary treatment would vary between 2.6 and 2.8 
metres in height. Plot 2 would benefit from an elevated pedestrian walkway which would run 
along the southeast side of the property whilst Plot 1 would be served by a side garden 
accessed via steps from the front parking area, side utility room door or rear patio area.  
 
This application is almost identical to the recently approved scheme for two detached 
dwellings (planning permission P/18/0292). The main difference between this application 
and the previous approval is that both properties would be located approximately 0.6 
metres closer to the highway (Caradoc Street). In addition, the previously approved 
walkway along the side elevation of Plot 1 has been omitted and replaced by a small and 
simple stepped access leading from the utility room door to the side garden area. An 
obscurely glazed screen is also proposed to the northwest side of the rear patio area of Plot 
1. Additional information has also been submitted in respect of the external finishes of the 
property and driveway paving, details of the foul and surface water drainage, details of 
boundary treatments and the finished levels of the driveways.   

Page 16



 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
P/18/0292  - Construct two detached dwellings – Approved: 14th November 2018  
 
P/18/0153  - Construct a pair of semi-detached dwellings – Approved: 14th  

August 2018 
 
P/17/0230  - Renewal of outline planning permission P/15/0108 for the erection of a  

pair of semi-detached dwellings – Approved: 22nd September 2017 
 
P/15/0108 - Renewal of outline planning permission P/12/0020 for the erection of 1  

pair of semi-detached dwellings – Approved: 22nd May 2015 
 
P/12/0020 - Erection of 1 pair of semi-detached dwellings (Outline) –  

Approved: 30th March 2012 
 
P/06/0028 - Residential development (Outline) – Approved: 21st August 2006  
 
P/01/0500 - Provision of garage site for residential use only (Outline) –  

Approved: 4th April 2002 
 
PUBLICITY 
 
In accordance with the Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
Order (Wales) 2012, letters were sent out to neighbouring properties and two site notices 
were displayed within the vicinity of the site. To date, one letter of representation has been 
received from the occupier of 7 Well Street. The following concerns have been raised: 
 

 The occupier states that she did not receive any letter of notification for these works;  

 The development has been constructed with a 2 foot discrepancy, which should 
have been noticed when the footings were checked; 

 The building is too high causing the door to overlook the objectors garden, invading 
privacy;  

 The development is an eyesore; 

 The value of the objectors property has been decreased;  

 Two other applications were submitted last year, which the objector states she 
received no correspondence, and if she had, she would have objected.  

 
POLICY CONTEXT 
 
The following policies are relevant in the determination of this application: 
 
National planning policy 
 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW), Edition 10, December 2018: 
 
Para 3.5 – 3.15 sets out the importance of high quality design to ensure inclusive design, to 
promote environmental sustainability and ensure high environmental quality. Regard should 

Page 17



also be given to the special characteristics of an area, community safety and to encourage 
sustainable forms of transport. 
 
Para 3.34 notes that the countryside must be conserved and where possible enhanced for 
the sake of its ecological, geological, cultural and agricultural value and for its landscape 
and natural resources.  
 
Para 3.51 notes that previously developed land wherever possible should be used in 
preference to greenfield sites where it is suitable for development. 
 
Local Planning Policies 
 
- The Adopted Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan (LDP) 2006-2021 
 

Policy BW1 - Development strategy – Primary Growth Area. 
Policy BW4 - Settlement boundaries / locational constraints. 
Policy BW5 - Natural heritage. 
Policy BW7 - Sustainable design and place making. 
Policy BW8 - Development and the water environment. 
Policy BW12 - Development proposals and transport. 
Policy BW17 - Securing community infrastructure benefits. 
Policy AS22 - Affordable housing contributions. 
Policy TB11 - Access, parking and accessibility of local facilities. 

 
- Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG): 
 
SPG1 - Affordable Housing, March 2012 
SPG2 – Planning Obligations, March 2012 
SPG4 - Sustainable Design, July 2013 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The main issues to consider under the assessment of this application relate to whether the 
detached dwellings in this location, in terms of their scale, design and siting, would be 
acceptable with regards to their impact upon the character and appearance of the area, 
residential amenity, parking provision and highway safety.      
 
Principle of Development     
 
The application site lies within the settlement boundary as defined by the LDP Proposals 
Map. New development within the settlement boundary is generally supported by LDP 
policies BW1 and BW4, provided that the proposal is compatible with other relevant policies 
and material planning considerations. The principle of development in this location is 
therefore considered acceptable. Indeed, as stated above, full planning permission 
(P/18/0292) has previously been granted in November 2018 for two detached properties on 
this site. There is also a history of planning permission for the erection of two dwellings on 
this site. As noted above, the proposed development is almost identical to the most recent 
approval with the main change being that the dwellings have been constructed 0.6 metres 
closer to the highway (Caradoc Street).   

Page 18



Character and Appearance of the Area   
 
The proposed dwellings are identical in terms of their size and design to those previously 
permitted (approval P/18/0292). They would share similar characteristics, in terms of their 
scale and finishes to other surrounding properties, which include terraced and semi-
detached dwellings. Indeed, their appearance is very similar to the gable fronted dwellings 
along Llewellyn Street, some of which front the access into Caradoc Street. The proposed 
dwellings are therefore deemed to be an appropriate form of new build development which 
would be compatible with the varied context of the immediate area.  
 
The properties would feature a front two-storey gable projection which would act as the 
focal point and add character and interest to their primary frontages. The proposed external 
material finishes comprising of Spanish slates, rendered elevations and grey UPVC 
windows are also consistent with the material finishes of other properties within the 
surrounding area. Likewise, the 0.9 metre high red brick wall to the front of Plot 1, the 
rendered retaining wall with timber fencing above proposed to the rear of the properties and 
to the side of Plot 1 (adjacent to the parking area serving the properties off Well Street) and 
the 1.8 metre high close boarded fence adjacent to the rear boundary of 7, Well Street, 
would also be considered sympathetic boundary treatments which would be in context with 
the appearance of the surrounding area. Whilst it is noted that the rear retaining wall with 
fence above would result in a higher than average boundary treatment, this height would be 
required, due to the difference in levels between the gardens and rear lane.    
 
Overall, it is considered that the detached properties would represent a well-proportioned 
form of development which would not dominate this parcel of land, but instead, relate 
sympathetically to the wider surrounding built environment. As such, the proposed 
development would not detract from the character or appearance of the area and would 
therefore comply with LDP Policy BW7.    
 
Residential Amenity     
 
The proposed dwellings would be sited between the garages to the southeast and the 
properties to the west, along Well Street. Whilst the siting of the two-storey development 
adjacent to the existing garages would be acceptable, there were initial concerns in respect 
of the impact that Plot 1 would have on the amenities of the occupiers located along Well 
Street, particularly since these neighbouring properties are located at a lower ground level 
to the application site. 
 
Although no objections were received following the publicity exercise undertaken as part of 
the previous application (P/18/0292), one letter of objection has been received from the 
occupier of a neighbouring dwelling (7 Well Street). As a result of the concerns raised, both 
the Planning Officer and Enforcement Officer visited the objector’s property to fully assess 
proposal.  
 
Plot 1 would be sited approximately 4 metres, at its closest point, from the boundary with 7 
Well Street. Whilst the proposed dwellings would be higher than the neighbouring 
properties, given the difference in ground levels between Well Street and the application 
site, this current application does not propose any change in height of the dwellings from 
those approved under planning permission P/18/0292. The dwellings would only be 1.6 
metres higher than those properties at 7 and 8 Well Street. Thus, the distance of Plot 1 

Page 19



from the boundary with the neighbouring properties, combined with its height would not 
result in an overbearing form of development that would significantly harm the amenity of 
the residents in Well Street. There would be some loss of light from the proposed 
development given the siting of the dwellings and the fact that the sun rises in the east and 
sets in the west. However, the impact on these residents would not be so significant as to 
warrant the refusal of the application, particularly since an almost identical scheme has 
already been granted. In respect of overlooking, it is noted that a first floor window and a 
ground floor side door (serving the utility room) would be sited on the side elevation of Plot 
1 (which fronts the dwellings along Well Street). Both the window and the door have been 
fitted with obscure glass which prevents any overlooking into the private rear amenity areas 
serving these neighbouring properties.        
 
In order to further address the objectors concerns, in respect of overlooking, boundary 
treatment details have been submitted as part of this application, the approved (under 
permission P/180292) elevated 1 metre wide walkway along the side elevation of Plot 1 has 
been omitted and a 1.8 metre high privacy screen is proposed to the rear patio area serving 
Plot 1.      
 
In respect of the boundary treatments, their height and material finishes would be 
acceptable. The 1.8 metre high fence adjacent to the boundary of 7 Well Street would 
ensure that the private amenities of the neighbouring occupiers and future occupiers would 
be safeguarded. Likewise, the rear boundary retaining walls with fencing above (adjacent 
the rear lane) would also provide a private rear amenity area to serve the future occupiers 
of the proposed dwellings. To the other side of the rear lane, the boundary is largely 
screened by trees and other vegetation (which back onto the gardens of dwellings located 
off Hanover Street). As such, the rear boundary walls would not appear overbearing on 
these properties. 
 
The omission of the one metre wide walkway to the side of Plot 1 is deemed beneficial in 
terms of reducing any overlooking to the existing properties in Well Street. Likewise, the 
introduction of a privacy screen to the rear patio area of Plot 1 would also limit any 
overlooking possibilities to neighbouring residents in Well Street, 
 
Finally, it is considered that the re-siting of the dwellings 0.6 metres closer to the front 
highway (Caradoc Street), would not be significantly more harmful to the amenities of these 
neighbouring residents when compared to the approval development.  
 
In terms of the impact of the proposal on the amenities of neighbouring properties to the 
rear, in particular 1, Hanover Street, as highlighted above, this property is sited on the other 
side of a 3.3 metre wide rear lane and is totally screened by extensive vegetation along its 
rear boundary. As such, overlooking opportunities into the private amenity area of this 
property, from the proposed dwellings, would be limited.   
 
It is therefore considered that the relationship of the 2 proposed detached properties with 
the neighbouring properties would be acceptable. The proposal is therefore in accordance 
with LDP Policy BW7. 

Page 20



Parking and Highway Safety       
 
The proposed dwellings would each be served by two on-site parking spaces. This would 
ensure that vehicles are kept off the highway and allow for manoeuvring space for other 
highway users. The Engineering and Traffic Group Leader has not raised any objections to 
the proposed development which would therefore comply with LDP Policies BW7, BW12 
and TB11.    
 
Planning obligations  
 
Policies BW17 and AS22 consider the requirement for planning obligations and affordable 
housing respectively. The requirement for an affordable housing contribution, or any other 
appropriate planning obligations, on the proposed development has been assessed by the 
Planning Policy Section. 
 
In this instance no planning obligations for the provision of affordable housing or any other 
contributions have been sought as this would likely render the development financially 
unviable. In order to come to this conclusion, an assessment has been carried out using the 
Three Dragons Toolkit.  
 
Responses to Representations  
 
Some of the concerns raised by the objector have been considered above. Other issues 
raised are addressed below: 
 

 The council’s records have been checked and these indicate that letters were sent to 
the occupier(s) of 7 Well Street as part of the publicity exercise undertaken for the 
application the subject of this report as well as previous applications.  

 The reduction in property value would not be a material planning consideration. 
 
CONCLUSION  
 
The proposed dwellings would result in an acceptable form of development which would not 
detract from the character and appearance of the area, the amenities of surrounding 
occupiers or highway safety. The proposal is therefore in accordance with the relevant LDP 
Policies.   
 
The duty to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, 
in accordance with the sustainable development principle, under section 3 of the Well-Being 
of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (“the WBFG Act”) has been taken into 
consideration when determining this application. In reaching the following recommendation, 
the ways of working set out at section 5 of the WBFG Act have been considered and thus 
the proposal is in accordance with the sustainable development principle through its 
contribution towards one or more of the Welsh Ministers well-being objectives set out as 
required by section 8 of the WBFG Act. 

Page 21



Accordingly, the following recommendation is made: 
 
RECOMMENDATION: BE APPROVED subject to the following CONDITIONS: 
 
 
 1. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 

plans and documents: 
  
 - OS MasterMap (Amended Plan), received: 1st August 2019; 

 - Section and Block Plan, Drawing number: 2610 NB (Amended Plan), received: 5th  
August 2019;  

 - Changes to Boundaries, Drawing number: 2610 NB b (Amended Plan), received: 
23rd July 2019;  

 - Proposed Detached House Plot 1, Drawing number: 2610 NB Plot 1, received: 9th 
May 2019; 

 - Proposed Detached House Plot 2, Drawing number: 2610 NB Plot 2, received: 9th 
May 2019;  

 - Section Through Parking Space/Forecourt (Additional Information), Drawing 
number: 2610, received: 14th June 2019;  

 - Typical Soakaway Details, Drawing number: 112, Rev P1, (Additional Information) 
received: 20th May 2019; 

 - Sample of render and tile (Additional Information), received: 14th June 2019; 
 - Drainage Layout, Drawing number: 100, Rev: P2, received: 20th My 2019;  
 - Permeable Drive Calculation (Additional Information), received 20th May 2019;  
 - Soakaway Calculation (Additional Information), received 20th May 2019;  
 - Permeable Block Paving Details (Additional Information), received: 20th May 2019;  
 - Structural Calculations (Additional Information), received: 14th June 2019;  
 - Everglade Obscure glass (Additional Information), received: 18th June 2019.  
     
 Reason -To ensure compliance with the approved plans and clearly define the 

scope of the permission. 
 
 2. The first floor side facing bathroom window installed with Everglade obscure glass 

and the ground floor side facing utility room door with the top half installed with 
Everglade obscure glass, shall be permanently retained in that condition thereafter. 

  
 Reason - In the interest of residential amenity and to accord with Policy BW7 of the 

Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan 
 
 3. The boundary treatments hereby proposed, including the 1.8 metre high privacy 

screen to be erected to the southwest side boundary (as indicated on drawing no. 
2610 NB received on 05/08/2019), shall be erected before the occupation of the 
dwellings and retained as such thereafter. 

  
 Reason - To ensure that the new development will be visually attractive and 

boundaries protected in the interests of amenity in accordance with Policy BW7 of 
the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan. 

 

Page 22



 4. The 1.8 metre high obscure glass privacy screen to the rear patio area of Plot 1 (as 
indicated on drawing no. 2610 NB received on 05/08/2019) shall be erected before 
the occupation of Plot 1 and retained as such thereafter. 

  
 Reason - In the interest of residential amenity and to accord with Policy BW7 of the 

Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan 
 
 5. Notwithstanding the provisions of schedule 2, Part 1, Class A of the Town and 

Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended for 
Wales) (or any order revoking and re-enacting that order with or without 
modification), no extensions shall be erected. 

  
 Reason - In the interest of residential and visual amenity in accordance with Policy 

BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan. 
 
 6. Notwithstanding the provisions of schedule 2, Part 1, Class E of the Town and 

Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended for 
Wales) (or any order revoking and re-enacting that order with or without 
modification), no outbuildings shall be erected. 

  
 Reason - In the interest of visual and residential amenity in accordance with Policy 

BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 
            

FOR INFORMATION – APPEAL RECEIVED  
 

DATE WRITTEN 3rd September 2019 

REPORT AUTHOR Judith Jones 

CASE OFFICER Caroline Pulley 

COMMITTEE Planning and Regulatory 

COMMITTEE DATE 18th September 2019 

 
Application No. Date Determining Authority 
P/18/0343 06.11.2018 MTCBC 
   
Proposed Development Location Name & Address of 

Applicant/Agent 
   
Erection of garage 1 Wern Street 

Dowlais 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 3NG 

Mr Martin Burvill 
1 Wern Street 
Dowlais 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 3NG 

 

 

TYPE OF APPPEAL:   AGAINST REFUSAL   
APPEAL REFERENCE NO.:  APP/U6925/D/19/3235998 
DATE APPEAL RECEIVED:  27th August 2019 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



FOR INFORMATION 
 

 

DELEGATED DECISION REPORT LIST:  1st July – 31st August 2019 

App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/18/0132 Tyncoedcae Farm 
Swansea Road 
Swansea Road 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1PB 
 

Replacement dwelling with detached 
garage 

Full Approval 01/08/2019 

P/18/0300 56 And 57 Glebeland 
Street And 119 High 
Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 
 

Change of use from offices and shop to 
provide a restaurant with takeaway (A3 
use class) to include the removal of roller 
shutters and a new shopfront and 
installation of flue to the rear 

Full Approval 19/08/2019 

P/18/0401 Land Within The 
Curtilage Of 
Greenacres (Plot 1) 
Brondeg 
Heolgerrig 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Erection of dwelling Full Approval 01/07/2019 

P/18/0403 Citizens Advice 
Bureau Site,  
Adjacent Garage And  
24 And 25 Lower 
Thomas Street  
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0BY 
 

Demolish Citizens Advice Bureau buildings 
(including garage) and construct a two 
storey development of 5 flats with 
associated engineering works, and change 
of use of ground floor of 24 and 25 Lower 
Thomas Street from offices (B1) to flats 
(C3) 

Full Approval 26/07/2019 

P/19/0032 Cefn Isaf Flats 
Wern Road 
Cefn Coed 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Refurbishment of existing buildings and 
alterations to existing car park and bin 
stores 

Full Approval 09/07/2019 

P/19/0088 P & R Motors 
Merthyr Ltd 
Merthyr Road 
Pentrebach 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 4UB 
 

Renewal of planning permission P/16/0057 
for residential development 

Outline 
Approval 

08/07/2019 

DATE WRITTEN 3rd September 2019 

REPORT AUTHOR Judith Jones 

CASE OFFICER Various 

COMMITTEE Planning and Regulatory 

COMMITTEE DATE 18th September 2019 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/19/0091 Ysgol Santes Tudful  
Pantyffyn Road 
Penyard 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0HU 
 

New classroom building with an associated 
walkway 

Full Approval 21/08/2019 

P/19/0115 Glenbrook 
High Street 
Trelewis 
Treharris 
CF46 6AD 
 

Provision of a new access and driveway to 
front of property 

Refusal 02/07/2019 

P/19/0117 Fair View Cottage  
Fairview Terrace 
Twynyrodyn 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0RL 

Change of use of land to garden 
(retrospective), erect two storey rear 
extension, erection of detached garage 
(following removal of existing) creation of 
new driveway and associated retaining 
walls 
 

Full Approval 18/07/2019 

P/19/0134 Land To The Rear Of 
Hanover Street And 
Stuart Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Vary condition 1 of planning permission 
P/14/0201 to extend time period within 
which to commence development 

Full Approval 02/07/2019 

P/19/0138 Unit 9  
Cyfarthfa Retail Park 
Swansea Road 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1HY 
 

The subdivision of unit 9 (formerly 9A) into 
two units, including amendments to the 
shopfront 

Refusal 25/07/2019 

P/19/0139 Capel Salem Kingdom 
Hall  
20 New Castle Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0BH 

Conversion of building to 6 No. 1 bedroom 
flats, demolition of two storey rear 
extension, construction of first floor 
extension, installation of cupola on the 
roof, renovation of building exterior and 
internal alterations 
 

Full Approval 21/08/2019 

P/19/0143 ICI Playing Fields 
Bryniau Road 
Pant 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Erection of prefabricated spectator stand Full Approval 08/07/2019 

P/19/0144 7 Vincent Place 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8PT 
 

First floor rear extension Full Approval 27/08/2019 

  

Page 28



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/19/0145 50 Dan-y-parc View 
Incline Top 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0GF 
 

Single storey rear extension Full Approval 08/07/2019 

P/19/0146 Park View 
Lower Vaynor Road 
Cefn Coed 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2LY 
 

Erect single storey side extension and front 
porch extension 

Full Approval 08/07/2019 

P/19/0148 21 Park Place 
Penydarren Road 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0DJ 
 

Conversion of premises to provide an 
additional self contained flat with 
associated alterations 

Full Approval 19/07/2019 

P/19/0149 Land Adjacent To 6 
Criccieth Grove 
Castle Park 
Swansea Road 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Erection of a two storey dwelling Outline 
Approval 

16/07/2019 

P/19/0150 3 Trevor Close 
Pant 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2BG 
 

Erect first floor rear extension including 
alterations to rear windows of the property 

Full Approval 08/07/2019 

P/19/0152 Unit 1 
16 Dynevor Street 
Georgetown 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1AY 
 

Change of use from print shop to hot food 
takeaway with the erection of an 
extraction flue 

Full Approval 23/07/2019 

P/19/0154 Playground Adjacent 
To 138 Heolgerrig 
Heolgerrig 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Refurbishment of existing playground (to 
include new play equipment, fencing and 
parking bay) 

Full Approval 18/07/2019 

P/19/0155 Brig Y Coed Bungalow 
Swansea Road 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1NY 
 

Single storey rear extension Full Approval 11/07/2019 

  

Page 29



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/19/0158 64 Cwrt Bevan 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0AQ 
 

Change of use of land at the front of the 
property to include the erection of a 1.5m 
high railing.  Construct a patio area (two-
tier) with side steps to the rear.  Erect 0.8m 
high retaining wall along the rear 
boundary, to include an increase in the 
height of the fence.  Erect a shed within 
the rear garden. 
 

Full Approval 18/07/2019 

P/19/0159 3 Mardy Close 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0YH 
 

First floor rear extension Full Approval 20/08/2019 

P/19/0160 10 Archer Street 
Troedyrhiw 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 4JQ 
 

Two storey rear extension Full Approval 17/07/2019 

P/19/0161 43-45 High Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8DE 
 

Alterations to ground floor facade and first 
floor window arrangement 

Full Approval 26/07/2019 

P/19/0163 83 Ty Llwyd Parc 
Quakers Yard 
Treharris 
CF46 5LB 
 

First floor side extension Full Approval 22/07/2019 

P/19/0164 127 - 128 High Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8DN 
 

Installation of a CCTV camera Full Approval 22/07/2019 

P/19/0165 Unit 
30A Pant Industrial 
Estate 
Pant 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2SR 
 

Erection of new fence and gate enclosure 
to car park 

Full Approval 12/08/2019 

P/19/0167 O P Chocolates Ltd 
High Street 
Dowlais 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 3TB 
 

Erection of two signs Advertisement 
Approval 

26/07/2019 

P/19/0168 Swan Villa 
50 Swansea Road 
Swansea Road 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1HR 
 

First floor side extension, single storey side 
extension, front porch, chimney and other 
external alterations 

Full Approval 06/08/2019 

Page 30



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/19/0169 Land Adjacent To Lle 
Hyfryd 
Mount Pleasant 
Heolgerrig 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Application to extend the time for the 
submission of reserved matters and the 
commencement of works in respect of 
planning permission P/16/0099 

Outline 
Approval 

30/07/2019 

P/19/0172 Penybryn  
Heolgerrig 
Heolgerrig 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1RP 

Raise ridge height of existing property and 
construct a front dormer extension, front 
porch, first floor rear extension and single 
storey side extension.  Provide new front 
driveway and timber fencing along north-
eastern side boundary 
 

Refusal 13/08/2019 

P/19/0174 Gwaunfarren Stores  
Gurnos Road 
Gurnos 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 9NH 

Conversion of building to provide a shop 
and takeaway at ground floor and a flat at 
first floor.  Proposal to include the erection 
of a flue and a single storey extension and 
associated external alterations 
 

Full Approval 20/08/2019 

P/19/0175 Pant Primary School 
Heol-y-bryniau 
Pant 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2AD 
 

Timber cladding fence fixed to existing 
palisade fence 

Full Approval 13/08/2019 

P/19/0176 20 Chapel Banks 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1BP 
 

Erection of two storey side extension and 
new single storey rear conservatory 
extension 

Full Approval 20/08/2019 

P/19/0179 6 Millfield 
Quakers Yard 
Treharris 
CF46 5LD 
 

Fell oak tree Tree Works 
Approval 

28/08/2019 

P/19/0180 Plot 4 (Plot 793) 
Urban Street 
Penydarren 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Demolish existing garage and erect larger 
garage 

Full Approval 13/08/2019 

P/19/0181 Gwynfa Bungalow 
Swansea Road 
Swansea Road 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1HN 
 

New vehicular access and creation of 
parking area in front garden with 
associated re-profiling of land and new 
access gates 

Full Approval 13/08/2019 

  

Page 31



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/19/0182 16 Park Crescent 
Summerhill Place 
Twynyrodyn 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0EU 
 

Entrance porch to side of dwelling Full Approval 13/08/2019 

P/19/0183 46 Dennithorne Close 
And Adjacent Parcel 
Of Land 
Dowlais 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 3HE 
 

Extension of garden curtilage Full Approval 19/08/2019 

P/19/0184 1 Commercial Street 
Bedlinog 
CF46 6RE 
 

Non material amendment to application 
P/19/0018 to change the external roofing 
material proposed for the garage 

Non Material 
Amendment - 
Approved 

22/07/2019 

P/19/0185 Former Vaynor And 
Pendryn School Site 
And 
Godre'r Coed Playing 
Field Site 
Cefn Coed 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 
 

Non material amendment to planning 
permission P/18/0311 for changes in levels 
to both the former school site and Godre'r 
Coed Playing Field site (and new retaining 
wall where required) layout changes to 
both the car park/access road (and 
associated footpath) and school site with 
the widening of the exsting entrance at 
South Terrace.  Introduction of stone faced 
retaining wall to front of school with 
changes to access path and steps.  The 
introduction of new play equipment and 
accessible paths on school site 
 

Non Material 
Amendment - 
Approved 

13/08/2019 

P/19/0186 Unit 7 & 7B 
Pant Industrial Estate 
Pant 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2SR 
 

Change of use to A1 use class (Greggs 
Bakery) with D1 use class (Training Room) 
to include the installation of new 
shopfront, extraction unit and air 
conditioning units 

Full Approval 27/08/2019 

P/19/0193 Land To The Rear Of 
10-12 Oak Road 
Gurnos (Plot 900) 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

New attached garage Full Approval 21/08/2019 

P/19/0195 Ynyshir Farm  
14 Tramroadside 
Treharris 
CF46 5EF 
 

Erection of storage shed to store 
equipment for the maintenance of land 

Full Approval 23/08/2019 

  

Page 32



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/19/0197 Prince Charles 
Hospital  
Gurnos Road 
Gurnos 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 9DT 
 

Construction of steel gantry structures to 
provide cable routes 

Full Approval 23/08/2019 

P/19/0198 64 - 65 High Street & 
1 John Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8AE 
 

Non material amendment to application 
P/18/0320 for the installation of 3 roof 
lights (2 to serve attic flat and 1 to serve 
the communal stairs), installation of wider 
door and new window (to serve flat 5 at 
2nd floor), the replacement of the existing 
side door/gate with new glazed door (off 
John Street) and alterations to the internal 
layout 
 

Non Material 
Amendment - 
Approved 

06/08/2019 

P/19/0199 Tynygarn  
Upper High Street 
Cefn Coed 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2HW 
 

Extend garage to provide a double garage 
(to include the repositioning of the garage 
doors) 

Full Approval 23/08/2019 

P/19/0200 The New Crown Inn  
28 High Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8DP 

Non material amendment to planning 
application P/18/0151 to vary approved 
roof lights and glazed gable ends of 
conservatory 
 

Non Material 
Amendment - 
Approved 

31/07/2019 

P/19/0204 8 Duffryn Fawr 
Pentrebach 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 4DN 
 

Construction of a shed in rear garden Certificate of 
Law Refused 

05/08/2019 

P/19/0217 Woodland North 
West Of Treharris 
 
 

Construction of new access tracks (to 
facilitate the felling of larch trees) 

Approval not 
Required 

30/08/2019 

 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 P/180/377 -  3 Union Street, Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 0EB
	4 P/19/0118 - Land opposite 1-4 Caradoc Street, Merthyr Tydfil
	5 P/18/0343 Appeal Received
	6 Delegated Report

